RECONVENED PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the Meeting held in the Council Chamber, Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT on Thursday, 27 June 2019 from 7.05pm - 7.40pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Cameron Beart, Monique Bonney, Simon Clark, Tim Gibson (Chairman), Nicholas Hampshire, James Hunt, Peter Marchington, Benjamin Martin (Vice-Chairman), Ben J Martin (Substitute for Councillor Eddie Thomas), Richard Palmer (Substitute for Councillor Paul Stephen), Tim Valentine and Tony Winckless.

OFFICERS PRESENT: Simon Algar, Andrew Jeffers, Kellie MacKenzie, Ross McCardle, Cheryl Parks and Graham Thomas.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Councillor Ken Rowles.

APOLOGIES: Councillors Roger Clark, James Hall, Carole Jackson, Elliott Jayes, Paul Stephen and Eddie Thomas.

96 EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE

The Chairman ensured that those present were aware of the emergency evacuation procedure.

97 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared.

98 SCHEDULE OF DECISIONS

PART 1

Reports to be considered in public session not included elsewhere on this Agenda

1.1 Section 106 Year End Review 2018/19

Highlights of the Year: April 2018 to March 2019

The Chairman reported that if Members had any queries on the report to contact the Council's Section 106 Monitoring Officer direct.

Resolved: That the reported be noted.

1.2

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

A solar photovoltaic array, and electrical storage and connection infrastructure, each with a gross electrical output capacity of over 50 megawatts.

ADDRESS Land At Cleve Hill Graveney Kent ME13 9EE – Approximate National Grid

reference of site centre TR 037 639.					
WARD	Boughton	and	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT Cleve Hill Solar	
Courtenay			Graveney with Goodnestone	Park Ltd	

This item was considered at the Planning Committee meeting held on 20 June 2019.

1.3 Review and re-designation of Conservation Areas at: Boughton Street, Boughton Church and South Street

The Conservation and Design Manager (Planning) introduced the report. He drew attention to some numbering errors in the appendices.

The Chairman invited Members to ask questions.

In response to a query from a Member about why some information in the report had been redacted, the Conservation and Design Manager (Planning) explained that following legal advice that information had been redacted to comply with Data Protection legislation.

The Lawyer (Planning) clarified that it was standard practice to redact any information that could identify someone.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application, and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

Resolved: That the content of the Conservation Area Character Appraisal and associated management strategies be noted.

Resolved: That the Boughton Street, Boughton Church and South Street areas of special architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to preserve or enhance, be re-designated as conservation areas in accordance with Section 69 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act, 1990.

Resolved: That the boundaries to the conservation areas be as proposed on Map No. BSCA05 (Boughton Street), Map No. BCCA03 Rev. A (Boughton Church) and Map No. SSCA03 (South Street), set out at Appendices 3, 4A and 5 respectively.

PART 2

Applications for which **PERMISSION** is recommended

2.1 REFERENCE NO - 19/501555/FULL & 19/501556/LBC

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Refurbishment and improvement of existing granary to provide ancillary accommodation.

ADDRESS Scotts Farm House Hansletts Lane Ospringe Faversham Kent ME13 0RW					
WARD East Downs	PARISH/TOWN Ospringe		APPLICAN AGENT Architects	T Mr Tim Alan	n Stiles Foster

The Area Planning Officer introduced the application.

There were no questions from Members.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the applications and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

Resolved: That application 19/501555/FULL be approved subject to conditions (1) to (3) in the report.

Resolved: That application 19/501556/LBC be approved subject to conditions (1) to (6) in the report and referral of the application to the National Planning Casework Service.

2.2 REFERENCE NO - 19	9/501881/FULL				
APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Proposed first floor rear extension.					
ADDRESS Old Moss Mill Lane Hartlip Sittingbourne Kent ME9 7TB					
WARD Hartlip, Newington and Upchurch	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Hartlip	APPLICANT Bendelow AGENT Resi	Mr	Ryan	

The Senior Planner reported that the agent had submitted an amended drawing omitting the balcony from the proposed extension, to overcome concerns raised by a neighbour and the Parish Council regarding potential overlooking. He explained that the scale of the extension remained the same as originally proposed, and that delegated approval was sought subject to the imposition of an additional condition listing the approved drawing numbers.

There were no questions from Members.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

Resolved: That application 19/501881/FULL be delegated to officers to approve subject to conditions (1) and (2) in the report and an additional condition listing the amended drawing numbers.

2.3 REFERENCE NO - 19/502141/FULL

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Erection of garage with self contained annexe above and associated drive to facilitate

the care of elderly parent. (Resubmission to 19/500219/FULL)					
ADDRESS 20 Hustlings Drive Eastchurch Sheerness Kent ME12 4JX					
WARD Sheppey East	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Eastchurch	APPLICANT P&S Properties Services (South East) Ltd AGENT Giarti			

This item was withdrawn by the applicant.

2.4 REFERENCE NO – 19/500768/FULL					
APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Winter storage of seasonal workers caravans and welfare unit.					
ADDRESS Owens Court Farm Owens Court Road Selling Faversham Kent ME13 9QN					
WARD Boughton and Courtenay	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Selling	APPLICANT F W Mansfield & Son AGENT Hobbs Parker Property Consultants			

This item was withdrawn from the Agenda.

2.5 REFERENCE NO - 19/501731/FULL						
APPLICATION PROPOSA	APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Alteration to domestic garage	Alteration to domestic garage to provide annexe to main dwelling house.					
ADDRESS 1 Brenley Bridge Cottages Brenley Lane Boughton Under Blean Faversham Kent ME13 9LZ						
WARD Boughton and Courtenay	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Boughton Under Blean	APPLICANT C Riches Properties Limited				
		AGENT Wyndham Jordan Architects				

The Area Planning Officer reported that further concerns from Boughton Under Blean Parish Council had been received, raising the following further concerns: the application was not comparable to the application in Newington which was allowed on appeal; the applicants were a property company; and neighbours objected as there were issues with the cesspit.

The Chairman invited Members to ask questions.

A Ward Member queried how the Council would be able to enforce that the annexe was only being used as an ancillary annexe and not a separate dwelling. The Area Planning Officer stated that if complaints were received the Council's enforcement team would be able to investigate.

In response to further queries, the Area Planning Officer confirmed that the previous application 17/502723/FULL was for a free-standing dwelling so was a change of use, the current application was for alterations. He was unsure how far the annexe would have to be from the house to still be considered an annexe and whether Brenley Lane was classified as a 'rural' lane under policy DM26 of the Local Plan.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

A Ward Member, also a Member of the Planning Committee, spoke against the application. He was surprised the applicant had been given permission for a four-car garage which he considered was extremely high for its purpose. The Member also raised concern that if it became a separate dwelling it would lead to parking problems. The Member supported the Parish Council reasons for objecting to the application.

Members debated the proposal and raised the following points: concerned that the applicants were using the application as a means to eventually gain permission to convert to a property; needed to make it clear that would not support an application for conversion to a separate dwelling; and could only consider the application on its merits and not what may happen.

There was some discussion about a similar application at Eastchurch, which the Council refused but was allowed on appeal. The Senior Planner explained that the Inspector considered that the application site at Eastchurch was in a sustainable location. This application was within a rural location.

On being put to the vote the motion to approve the application was lost.

Councillor Cameron Beart moved the following motion to refuse the application: The proposed development, situated as it is within a remote area with clear views of adjacent open countryside would, by virtue of its unsustainable position within a rural area outside of any built-up area boundary, cause demonstrable harm to the character and appearance of the countryside. This was seconded by Councillor Monique Bonney.

Councillor Beart confirmed that this was the same reason for refusing the previous application 17/502723/FULL.

On being put to the vote the motion to refuse the application was agreed.

Resolved: That application 19/501731/FULL be refused as the proposed development, situated as it is within a remote area with clear views of adjacent open countryside would, by virtue of its unsustainable position within a rural area outside of any built-up area boundary, cause demonstrable harm to the character and appearance of the countryside.

2.6 REFERENCE NO - 19/500577/REM

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Reserved Matters of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale following outline application 18/501409/OUT for erection of 2 No four bedroom houses and 1 No disabled sheltered bungalow.

ADDRESS Land To The North Of Vicarage Road Sittingbourne Kent ME10 2BL

WARD Milton Regis	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT Prestige
		Developments
		AGENT MRW Design

This item was considered at the meeting held on Thursday 20 June 2019.

Change of use of residential annexe to independent residential use (Retrospective).				
ADDRESS Annexe James House Kent View Drive Eastchurch Sheerness Kent ME12 4DP				
PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL Eastchurch	APPLICANT Ms Patricia Bath AGENT Brachers LLP			
H(ouse Kent View Drive East			

This item was considered at the meeting held on Thursday 20 June 2019.

PART 5

Decisions by County Council and Secretary of State, reported for information

• Item 5.1 - Shurland Farm, Shurland Cottage, High Street, Eastchurch

APPEAL ALLOWED

DELEGATED REFUSAL

A Member stated that he was very disappointed with the Inspector's decision to allow another garage conversion in Eastchurch.

Item 5.2 – 64 School Lane, Lower Halstow

APPEAL DISMISSED

DELEGATED REFUSAL

Item 5.3 – Broadoak Farm, Broadoak Road, Milstead

APPEAL ALLOWED

DELEGATED REFUSAL

• Item 5.4 – Uplees Fruit Farm, Uplees Road, Oare

APPEAL DISMISSED

APPEAL AGAINST NON-DETERMINATION

Chairman

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All Minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel